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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2020
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of The Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited, which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2020 and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity,
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together
with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the profit, total comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director's report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstatement. If, based on the work we have performed,
1)
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we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

(P 2
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were audited by another firm of
chartered accountants. The audit report dated 25 November 2019 expressed an unmodified
opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Abdullah Fahad Masood.

g/u ) ordh 1 Lo den

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 06 October 2020
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
12,500,000 (2019: 12,500,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Surplus on revaluation of freehold land
Accumulated profit

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finance - secured
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred government grants
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Contract liability

Short term borrowing - secured
Accrued mark-up

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
125,000,000 125,000,000
6 74,529,000 74,529,000
7 81,945,420 58,319,174
82,453,633 71,880,591
238,928,053 204,728,765
8 12,705,843 A
9 901,985 -
10 50,624,826 46,058,762
11 40,163,758 36,288,958
12 45,181,055 36,285,101
1,348,115 1,373,344
137,317,754 120,006,165
389,853,635 324,734,930
13

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

o Aalcen

-,

Chief Executive

v

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment
Intangibles

Long term investments
Long term deposits
Deferred taxation

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade debts - unsecured

Contract asset

Loan to associated company- unsecured
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Page 1 of 35

Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

14 153,574,855 129,824,202
15 254,885 636,869
16 70,100,000 70,100,000
1,335,300 1,336,200
17 10,627,595 11,848,142
235,892,635 213,845,413
18 118,999,596 99,515,745

2,038,611 -

19 30,000,000 -
20 1,759,429 7,062,313
230,662 1,571,175
21 932,702 2,740,284
153,961,000 110,889,517

389,853,635 324,734,930

oL

Director




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers - net
Administrative and general expenses

Provision for expected credit loss on trade debts
Operating profit

Other income

Finance cost

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after tax

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
22 249,852,225 217,633,286
23 (169,522,920) (155,092,410)
18 (4,552,056) (1,441,798)
75,777,249 61,099,078
24 2,195,076 813,956
25 (6,581,976) (4,496,570)
71,390,349 57,416,464
26 (23,552,807) (14,758,356)
47,837,542 42,658,108
27 6.42 5.72

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statementsm’

Akal\‘gd. nluh.::

Chief Executive
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account:

- Recognition of actuarial loss on defined benefit plan
- Related deferred tax

- Gain on revaluation of freehold land

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.m

Ahalyod, ~alean,

Chief Executive
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Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
47,837,542 42,658,108
- (3,916,160)
- 1,135,686
14 23,626,246 -
23,626,246 (2,780,474)
71,463,788 39,877,634

Y
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance as on 30 June 2018

Effect of initial application of IFRS 15, net of tax
Effect of initial application of IFRS 9, net of tax
Adjusted balance as at 1 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation - restated

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 at the
rate of Rs 2.50 per share.

Balance as on 30 June 2019 - restated

Balance as on 30 June 2018
Balance as on 01 July 2019 - restated

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share.

Balance as on 30 June 2020

L.‘Ip& L’.Rh(

Chief Executive

Issued, subscribed

Capital reserve

Revenue Reserve

Surplus on

and paid up share & Accumulated Total
Eanital revaluation of rofit
P freehold land P
Rupees

74,529,000 58,319,174 61,253,729 194,101,903
- - (9,090,880) (9,090,880)
- - (1,527,642) (1,527,642)

74,528,000 58,319,174 50,635,207 183,483,381
u = 42,658,108 42658,108
= = (2,780,474 (2,780,474)
- - 39,877,634 39,877,634
e - (18,632,250) (18,632,250)
- - (18,632,250) (18,632,250)

74,529,000 58,319,174 71,880,591 204,728,765

74,529,000 58,319,174 67,388,628 200,236,802

74,529,000 58,319,174 71,880,591 204,728,765
= = 47,837,542 47,837,542
- 23,626,246 - 23,626,246
- 23,626,246 47,837,542 71,463,788
- - (37,264,500) (37,264,500)

74,529,000 81,945,420 82,453,633 238,928,053

)
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 2020 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Rupees
Profit before tax 71,390,349 57,416,464
Adjustment of non cash items:
Depreciation on property and equipment 14 3,246,361 2,717,158
Amortization on intangible assets 15 381,984 652,912
Finance cost 25 6,581,976 4,496,570
Gratuity (income) / expense (1,444,257) 3,881,083
Mark-up on saving accounts 24 (106,534) (164,349)
Provision for expected credit loss on trade debts 18 4,552,056 1,441,798
Exchange gain 25 (41,259) (36,007)
Liabilities no longer payable written back 24 (594,947) (600,000)

12,575,380 12,389,165

83,965,729 69,805,629
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in trade debts (23,994,648) 10,338,828
(Increase) in contract asset (2,038,611) =
Decrease / (Increase) in advances, deposits and prepayments 5,302,884 (1,125,275)
Increase / (decrease) trade and other payables 12,958,254 (1,970,586)
Increase contract liability 3,874,800 22,356,821

(3,897,321) 29,599,788
Finance cost paid (6,607,205) (3,996,705)
income tax paid (20,872,019) (28,082,563)
Contribution to gratuity fund (6,352,986) (3,302,626)
Net cash generated from operating activities 46,236,198 64,023,523
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment (3,370,768) (3,210,520)
Investment in associate: - (7,500,000)
Interest received 106,534 164,349
Net cash used in investing activities (3,264,234) (10,546,171)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finance obtained 13,589,000 -
Loan to associated company (30,000,000) ~
Dividend paid (37,264,500 (37,264,500)
Net cash used in financing activity 3 (53,675,500) (37,264,500)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,703,536) 16,212,852
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (33,544,817) (49,793,676)
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents - 36,007
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 (44,248,353) (33,544,817)

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements{.}w

2
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The PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1.

1.1

21

Legal status and operations

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ("the Company") was incorporated as a private limited company
in Pakistan on 18 August 1994 and converted into a public limited company on 30 April 2004. The business
of the Company is to carry out risk evaluation of companies and specific instruments. The evaluation is
expressed in terms of assigned credit rating to the entity or the instrument reflecting the capacity to honor its
debt or other fixed term obligations. The registered office of the Company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-
1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited is part of PACRA Group which consist of:

it ; % age of Direct % age of Effective
Shbsigiaty: companias shareholding shareholding
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 100% 100%
Aequitas Information Services Limited 20% 20%

The registered office of the PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman
Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. The objectives of the Company are to carry on business as management
& financial consultants, risk managers, project manager, trust consultants, planners, advisors, surveyors,
assessors, supervisors and / or technical advisors of or for any person, company, trust, banks and financial
institutions.

The registered office of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at 35-A-ll Aziz Avenue, Canal
Bank, Gulberg V Lahore, Pakistan. The main objectives of the Company are to carry out the business of a
Credit Information Company for collecting credit information as permissible by law relating to debtors.

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary and investment in associate are accounted for on cost basis rather than on the
basis of reported results. Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

Statement of compliance

These are unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting

standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:
GAY
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2.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on

Standard or Interpretation or after)

IFRS 9, IAS 39 Interest rate Benchmark Reform — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

& IFRS 7

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 1 January 2020
— (Amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 1 January 2020

IFRSIR &SR Joint Venture — Amendments
IAS1&8 Definition of Material — (Amendments) 1 January 2020
IFRS 3 Definition of a business — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards and
conceptual framework have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on

Standard or Interpretation or after)
IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS 01 July 2009
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2020

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

New accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments applicable to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
following new and amended standards and interpretations effective for annual period beginning on 1 July
2019, as listed below. The Company has not early-adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint 1 January 2019
operation — (Amendments)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation 1 January 2019

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on 1 January 2019
financial instruments classified as equity

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 1 January 201 3\ -
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3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The adoption of above standards, interpretations and amendments applied for the first time in the year did
not have impact on financial statements of the Company.

Basis of preparation

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for freehold land which is measured using revaluation model.

Presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumption

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on the historical experience, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or
complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as
follows:

Useful lives, residual values, pattern of economic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to depreciable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefits are
based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further the Company reviews the value of the
assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect
the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge.

Expected credit loss / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are

deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. .
(‘,:\
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

The Company reviews its trade receivables at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be
recorded in the statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required.
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes to the provisions.

Revaluation of freehold land

Revaluation of freehold land was carried out by independent professional valuer. Revalued amounts of non-
depreciable items are determined by reference to current market values.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in market value of the freehold land, being
revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a further
revaluation is required.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on its
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or
provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying
amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet date.

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, that is, the amount that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the
reporting date or to transferitto a third party.

Impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its non financial assets including cash
generating units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any
such indication.

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous year except as described in Note 2.2,

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to be entitled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction
of discounts. Specific revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows‘gb .

-J\ s
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5.2

53

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Fee income

Revenue from rating services is recognized at point in time when services are rendered to the customer,
which is when ratings are assigned to the customer. Revenue attributed to monitoring is recognized ratably
over the period in which monitoring is performed, generally one year.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective interest method.

Property and equipment

ltems of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less subsequent impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction including expenditures on material, labor and
overheads directly relating to construction, erection and installation of property and equipment.

Land is recognized at revalued amount based on valuation by external independent valuer. A revaluation
surplus credited to other reserves (capital reserves) in shareholders’ equity and presented as separate line
item in statement of financial position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land was recognised, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected
with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-
progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available for use.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to expense during the period in which these are incurred.

Depreciation charged on all property and equipment except freehold land, is based on the straight line
method so as to write off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at rates mentioned in
note 13 after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month
in which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which an asset is disposed

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Intangible

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible asset and any identified
impairment loss. The estimated useful life and amortization method is reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Finite intangible assets are amortized using straight-line method at rates mentioned in note 15 to these
unconsolidated financial statements. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the
month in which an asset is put to use and on disposal up to the month of disposal.
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Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences
arising on differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Company at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year,
and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on net
basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.nv
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Trade debts, deposits and other receivable

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance.

Trade and other payable

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Contract Balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration for rendering of services if the Company performs by providing
services to customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company render services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in normal course of business are conducted at arm's length
at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation
modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board
of Directors, it is in the interest of the Group to do so.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
debts and bank balance that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts that do not
My
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contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policy in Revenue
from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company's financial assets include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, other
receivables and bank balances.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

¢) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also
recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
-
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definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortized
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized,
modified or impaired.

The Company's financial assets at amortized costs includes trade debts and other receivables.

¢) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not
subject to impairment assessment.

The Company does not have any financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments).

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are
met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
AN/
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For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCl is recycled to
profit or loss.

The Company does not have debt instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected
credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The impact of

ECL on trade debts is disclosed in note 18.
Ny’

Page 15 of 35



5.15.2

5.16

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime
expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available for each bank
balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the outstanding contractual amount. The
expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss however, the impact of ECL on bank
balances is immaterial.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized
as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements,
creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operated a defined contributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Company and employees at the rate of 6.25% of the basic
salary to the Provident Fund Trust. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is expensed as
the related service is provided.c‘]\ ,
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Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:

i) there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or

ii) there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that
would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax
effect of changes in profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result
from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Long term investments

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary companies are measured at cost as per the requirements of I1AS-27 'Separate
Financial Statements'. However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts
of the investments and its recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that such investments
have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists the carrying amounts of the investments are
adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in profit and loss
account.

Investments in equity instruments of associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Investments in
equity instruments of associate is measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company's separate
financial statements.

Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions shall be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, itis recognized as
income on systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When a grant related to non monetary asset is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the
pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration
received less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings
are stated at original cost less subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized
amounts (as reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss
account over the period of borrowings on an effective rate basis. The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is
included in the cost of related assetc.uﬂ,
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Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) Rupees Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
fully paid in cash
1,500,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 5,052,900 5,952,900 59,529,000 59,529,000
7,452,900 7,452,900 74,529,000 74,529,000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an associated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2019: 2,683,042) ordinary
shares comprising 36% of the paid up share capital of the Company.

Directors hold 4,769,858 (2019: 4,769,858) ordinary shares comprising 64% of total paid up share capital of
the Company.

2020 2019
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land Rupees Rupees
Revaluation surplus 81,945,420 58,319,174

The revaluation of freehold land was carried out by an independent valuer, M/S Tristar International
Consultant (Private) Limited as at 16 March 2020. The revalued amount is determined based on present
market value of the freehold land after considering location, size, frontage, general condition, financial
involvement, present conditions of market and general practice of declaring sale value of urban property in
accordance with approved government rates and overall economic condition of the Company.

Note 2020 2019
Long term finance - secured Rupees Rupees
Bank AL Habib Limited 8.1 12,705,843 -

The Company has obtained long term finance facility from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of
Pakistan refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the month of
April 2020 to June 2020. This represents amount of term finance facility for paying salaries for the month of
April 2020 and May 2020. The facility is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments, payable quarterly in
arrears, commencing after a grace period of 9 months and it carries markup at the rate of 3% per annum.

This facility is secured by way of first hypothecation charge over book debts of the Company for Rs. 40 million
and furniture & fixtures of the Company for Rs. 10 million.

Deferred government grants

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market
interest rate under SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries of Workers and Employees
(as described in Note 8).

Movement during the year is as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Balance at beginning of the year - -
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year 937,275
Amount recognized as income during the year (35,290) -
Balance at end of the year 901,985 -

LNy
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Note 2020 2019
10. Trade and other payables Rupees Rupees
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 34,282,002 23,312,473
Payable to related parties 10.1 13,344,778 7,665,773
Payable to Provident Fund 746,094 -
Payable to Gratuity Fund 10.2 = 7,797,243
Withholding tax payable 754,749 40,200
Sales tax payable - net 1,497,203 7,243,073
50,624,826 46,058,762
10.1  Payable to related parties include:
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited (subsidiary) 13,344,778 7,276,414
Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate) - 389,359
13,344,778 7,665,773

10.1.1 This represents advance received from PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited which shall be adjusted against
expense incurred on behalf of Company.

10.2  As approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated 12 March 2019, the retirement
benefit plan related to gratuity has been discontinued effective 30 June 2019. Accordingly, the actual liability

of the employees as at 30 June 2020 has been recorded in these financial statements{.‘M,
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Note 2020 2019
Contract liability Rupees Rupees
Advance from customers 1.1 11,150,749 7,995,373
Deferred revenue 11.2 29,013,009 28,293,585

11.3 40,163,758 36,288,958

This represents advance received from customers for future rating of entities.
This represents deferred revenue relating to monitoring services recognized over time.

Revenue recognized in the reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the period amounts to Rs. 36 million.

Note 2020 2019
Short term borrowing- secured Rupees Rupees
JS Bank Limited 12.1 44,619,505 36,285,101
Bank AL Habib Limited 12.2 561,550 5
45,181,055 36,285,101
Add : Related accured mark-up 1,348,115 1,373,344
46,529,170 37,658,445
Less: Accrued mark-up shown as current liability (1,348,115) (1,373,344)
45,181,055 36,285,101

This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from JS Bank Limited of Rs. 90 million
(2019: Rs. 60 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 150 bps per annum
(2019: 1 month Kibor plus 150 bps per annum) payable quarterly in arrears. This is secured by way of
equitable and legal mortgage of notional value of Rs. 100,000 over a commercial plot measuring 2-
Kanals, 12-Marla and 107-Sq.Ft. situated at plot no. 34, Block-T, off Gurumangat Road, Gulberg-Il,
Lahore owned by the Company.

This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from Bank AL Habib Limited of Rs.15
million (2019: Rs 10 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 bps per
annum (2019: 3 month Kibor plus 150 bps per annum), payable quarterly. This is secured by way of first
hypothecation charge of Rs. 20 million and Rs. 10 million on book debts and furniture and fixtures of the
Company respectively.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

J§ Bank Limited has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Company in favor of Finance
Department of Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million (2019: Rs. 0.05 million).

Commitments

The amount of future payments under operating leases and the period in which these payments will
become due are as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Not later than one year 8,014,380 6,707,440
Later than one year but not later than five years . 9,198,432

e
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2020
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Additions / Cost / Revalued
As at As at For . As at 30 June Book value as at
Revaluations Disposals amount Disposals Rate
2020 30J 2020
01 July 2019 during the year 20 June 2020 01 July 2019 the year 02 une
B e e LR LRl Rupees ========c=n=- mmmmmmm—— L L —emem----RUp@ES-=-=----=mmm=-c--ccsmmennon-o- %
Owned
Freehold land ._Na.mww.ﬂm# Nm.mNm.th - Aﬁ.&N0.00ﬁ - - - - 144,320,000 -
Furniture and fixtures 16,037,537 608,468 - 16,646,005 14,907,772 464,435 - 15,372,207 1,273,798 10-33.33
Office equipment and computers 15,400,337 2,762,300 - 18,162,637 10,571,986 1,874,426 - 12,446,412 5716225  10-25
Security and surveillance equipment 158,727 . - 158,727 158,727 - - 158,727 - 33.33
Vehicles 4,633,509 1 - 4,633,509 1,461,177 907,500 - 2,368,677 2,264,832 20
156,923.864 26,997,014 - 183,920,878 27,099,662 3,246,361 - 30,346,023 153,574,855
2019
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at Additions during Disposals ogﬁmhaﬂmcﬂ“_cmn As at For Disposals Asat30June  Bookvalue as at Rate
01 July 2018 the year 20 June 2019 01 July 2018 the year 2019 30 June 2018
........ wmemmemmeecae--RUpEES - scmmmmmmmm oo oo m oo cmesmemescaacansansmamemeeeen RUPEES e m s ssc e s s s matm s s %
Owned
Freehold land 120,693,754 " - 120,693,754 - - - - 120,693,754 u
Fumiture and fixtures 15,655,017 382,520 - 16,037,537 14,467,569 440,203 - 14,907,772 1,129,765 10-33.33
Office equipment and computers 12,572,337 2,828,000 - 15,400,337 9,206,031 1,365,955 - 10,571,986 4,828,351 10-25
Security and surveillance equipment 158727 - - 158,727 158,727 - - 158,727 - 33.33
Vehicles 4,633,509 - - 4,633,509 550,177 911,000 - 1,461,177 3,172,332 20
153,713,344 3,210,520 - 156,923,864 24,382,504 2,717,158 - 27,099,662 129,824,202
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Depreciation charge is allocated as follows:
Administrative and general expenses 23 3,246,361 2,717,158

As at 30 June 2020, the canrying value of freehold land would have been Rs. 62.37 million (2019: Rs. 62.37 million), had there been no revaluation.

The cost of the assets as at 30 June 2020 includes fuly depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 31.78 million (2019: Rs. 21.85 million) still in use of the Company.

The forced sale value of freehold land measuring 2-Kanals, 12-Marla and 107-Sq.Ft. is Rs. 122,672,000 on the basis of revaluation conducted as at 16 March 2020. Itis situated at plot no. 34, Block-T, off Gurumangat Road,

Gulberg-ll, Lahore.
Y
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Note 2020 2018
15. Intangibles Rupees Rupees
Intangible assets 15.1 254,885 636,869
151 Intangible assets
2020
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Additions As at As at As at value as at
01 July during the 30 June 01 July For 30 June 30 June
2019 year 2020 2019 the year 2020 2020 Rate
cemmmm=-===-=--RUpEES ===--===-====-=- e o [T GRS 50 0 it . 8 %
Windows and MS office software 1,250,644 - 1,250,644 1,133,145 114,336 1,247,481 3,163 33.33
Rating software 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 - 33.33
Accounting software 932,930 - 932,930 413,560 267,648 631,208 251,722 33.33
Web development software 170,505 - 170,505 170,505 - 170,505 - 33.33
Database software 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - 33.33
8,267,039 - 8,267,039 7,630,170 381,984 8,012,154 254,885
2018
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Additions As at As at As at value as at
01 July during the 30 June 01 July For 30 June 30 June
2018 year 2019 2018 the year 2019 2019 Rate
.............. Rupegs -==--=--=--===~-~ I - e %
Windows and MS office software 1,250,644 - 1,250,644 741,489 391,656 1,133,145 117,499 33338
Rating software 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 1,912,560 - 1,912,960 - 33.33
Accounting software 932,930 - 932,930 152,304 261,256 413,560 519,370 33.33
Web development software 170,505 - 170,505 170,505 - 170,505 - 3333
Database software 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - 33.33
8,267,039 - 8,267,038 6,977,258 652,912 7,630,170 636,869
Note 2020 2018
15.1.1 Amortization charge has been allocated as follows: Rupees Rupees
Administrative and general expenses 23 381,984 652,912

152 The cost of the assets as at 30 June 2020 includes fully amortized assets amounting to Rs. 7.12 million (2018: Rs. 6.99 million) still in use of the Company.
o
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Long term investments
Investment in subsidiary 16.1 100,000 100,000
Investment in associate 16.2 70,000,000 70,000,000
70,100,000 70,100,000

This represents investment in PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Pakistan. The Company owns 10,000 (2019: 10,000) fully paid ordinary shares at the rate of Rs
10 each. The registered office of the Company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden

Town, Lahore,

This represents 20% equity investment in Aequitas Information Services Limited and accordingly classified as
investment in associate. At the year end the Company owns 7,000,000 (2019: 7,000,000) fully paid shares at
the rate of Rs. 10 each. The registered office of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at 35-A-ll Aziz
Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulberg V Lahore, Pakistan. The investment has been made in accordance with the

requirements under Companies Act 2017.

Deferred taxation

2020
: (Charge) / Credit to other .
Opening ; Closing
bulbiics credit to profit comprehensive balanes
or loss income
--------------------- Rupees »r==v=cccccecccanemns
Deductible temporary difference
Decelerated tax depreciation /
amortization allowances 439,714 (182,251) - 257,463
Provision for expected credit losses 1,042,088 578,180 - 1,620,268
Payable to gratuity fund 2,261,200 (1,877,536) - 383,664
Contract liability 8,205,140 161,060 - 8,366,200
11,948,142 (1,320,547) - 10,627,595
2019 - Restated
. Effect of Impact of . Credit to other
Opering correction of  adoption of new HGharge) credt comprehensive  Closing balance
balance to profit or loss j
error slandards income
..................... RUpEES---------------------
Deduclible temporary difference
Deceleraled tax depreciation /
amortization allowances 522,020 (62,306) 439,714
Provision for expected credit losses 623,967 418,121 1,042,088
Payable to gratuity fund 957,762 167,752 1,135,686 2,261,200
Contract liability (correction of error - 3,713,477 4,491,963 8,205,140
note 17.1)
5,192,959 4,491,963 623,967 503,567 1,135,686 11,948,142

Q)”\'}*
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17.1  In prior year the Company had recognized an advance tax amounting to Rs. 3.7 million instead of recording the
same as deferred tax asset on initial adoption of IFRS 15 and similarly had not recorded deffered tax asset on
closing contract liability as at 30 June 2019. The above has been identified as a fundamental error and adjusted
retrospectively as per the requirements of IAS-8 'Changes in accounting policies, estimates and fundamental
errors’. The effect of correction of the error on financial statements is summarized below. Since the error only
relates to prior year, a third statement of financial position has not been presented.

Effect on 2019

(Rupees)
Increase in deferred tax asset - 1 July 2018 3,713,177
Further increase in deferred tax asset - 30 June 2019 4,491,963
Decrease in advance income tax - net (3,713,177)
Decrease in taxation for 2019 (4,491,963)
Increase in profit after tax 4,491,963
The effect of restatement on statement of financial position is summarized below:
As reported at 01 Restatement Restated as at
July 2018 01 July 2018
------------------------ (RUpPEES) =mmmmmmmmeeecicacs
Deferred tax asset 1,479,782 3,713,177 5,192,959
As reported at 30 Restatsiaiit Restated as at
June 2019 esta 30 June 2019
------------------------ (RUPEES) =mmmmmmemeerenecmeee
Deferred tax asset 3,743,002 8,205,140 11,948,142
Advance tax 5,284,352 (3,713,177) 1,571,175
The effect of restatement on statement of profit or loss is summarized below:
As reported at 30 Restataiont Restated as at
June 2019 30 June 2019
------------------------ (Rupees) --=----unvssemmmmennnnns
Taxation 19,250,319 (4,491,963) 14,758,356
Profit after tax 38,166,145 4,491,963 42,658,108
The effect of restatement on statement of changes in equity is summarized below:
As reported at 30 Restatsiiiait Restated as at
June 2019 atement 1 30 June 2019
------------------------ (Rupees) -------=rrrmumunnannen
Profit after taxation - restated 38,166,145 4,491,963 42,658,108
L% 3
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Note 2020 2019
Trade debts Rupees Rupees
Trade debts - unsecured, considered good 124,618,498 103,109,152
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) 18.1 (5,618,902) (3,593,407)
118,999,596 99,515,745
The movement in provision for expected credit losses is as
follows:
Balance as at 1 July 2019 3,593,407 -
Effect of initial application of IFRS 9 . 2,151,609
Charge for the year 4,552,056 1,441,798
Trade debts written off directly (2,526,561) =
2,025,495 1,441,798
Balance as at 30 June 2020 5,618,902 3,593,407
Loan to associated company
Loan to Aequitas Information Services Limited 19.1 30,000,000 -
Add : Related accured mark-up 8,079 -
30,008,079 =
Less: Accrued mark-up shown as other receivable 20.1 (8,079) -
30,000,000 -

This represents loan given to Aequitas Information Services Limited (AISL) for the purpose of bridging AISL's
cash shortfall till subscription of a right issue. The loan is repayable on June 2021 along with the markup of
one month KIBOR plus 150 bps or at the rate paid by Aequitas Information Services Limited to its other
sponsor shareholder, whichever is higher. Any delay would yield a service charge of 1% per month.

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Advances - unsecured, considered good
- to employees - 340,538
- to suppliers 3,919 490,000
Prepayments 1,405,675 1,375,662
Other receivables 20.1 349,835 4,856,113
1,759,429 7,062,313
Other receivables include following unsecured amounts against shared expenses:
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Aequitas (Private) Limited (related party) 244,711 2,989,795
Aequitas Information Services Limited (associated company) 97,045 -
341,756 2,989,795
vy
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Other receivables include following unsecured amounts against accrued interest:
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate company) 8,079 -
The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was:
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Aequitas (Private) Limited (related party) 2,989,795 2,989,795
Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate company) 105,124 -
Age analysis of advance from associated companies, past due but not impaired is as follows:
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
0 to 6 months 349,835 1,329,410
6 to 12 months - 1,660,590
Above 12 months N =
349,835 2,980,000
Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand - 45,331
Cash at bank
Local currency
- Current accounts - 1,975,656
- Deposits and saving accounts 211 932,702 570,200
932,702 2,545,856
Foreign currency
- Current accounts - 149,097
932,702 2,740,284
These carries mark up at the rate of 6.5% to 11.5% (2019: 4.60% to 10.25%) per annum,
Note 2020 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 280,775,286 247,287,570
- foreign 1,420,000 1,308,099
282,195,286 248,595,669
Income from non-rating business - -
Less: Provincial Sales tax 32,343,061 30,962,383
221 249,852,225 217,633,286

During the year, there were no clients who along with their associates contributed ten percent (10%) or more

of the total revenue of the Company.
e’
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMTED

In the following table fees income from contracts with customers is disaggregated primarily by types of rating

and timing of revenue recognition.

Type of rating - Local fees income

Entity rating
Instrument rating
Fund rating

Type of rating - Foreign fees income

Entity rating

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognized at a point in time
Revenue recognized overtime

Administrative and general expenses

Salaries and other benefits

External rating committee members fee
Rent, rates and taxes

Postage and telephone

Utilities

Legal and professional charges
Director's meeting expenses

Travelling and entertainment

Printing, stationary and periodicals

Fee and subscription

Auditor's remuneration

Repairs and maintenance

Software maintenance and updation fee
Insurance

Depreciation on property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Others

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
174,943,734 146,741,595
52,929,172 51,400,207
20,559,319 18,183,385
248,432,225 216,325,187
1,420,000 1,308,099
249,852,225 217,633,286
201,692,399 181,541,163
48,159,826 36,092,123
249,852,225 217,633,286
231 132,031,895 115,002,676
6,425,000 5,452,466
9,405,086 10,272,993
922,249 986,048
3,241,943 3,336,293
2,510,939 3,080,783
2,630,000 1,230,000
3,062,657 5,508,111
822,006 812,140
440,860 1,505,976
23.2 498,750 552,135
1,479,788 1,050,243
1,386,120 733,038
28,469 21,825
14.1 3,246,361 2,717,158
15.1.1 381,984 652,912
1,008,813 2,177,613
169,522,920 155,092 410

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 5.11 million (2019: Rs. 4.25 million) and Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 3.88
million) in respect of contribution to provident fund and charge on account of gratuity fund respectively.

Auditor's remuneration

Annual audit
Out of pocket expenses

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
475,000 456,500
23,750 95,635
498,750 552,135
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Other income

Income from financial assets:

Mark-up based income from conventional banks:
Mark-up on saving accounts
Mark-up on loan given to associate
Exchange gain

Income from non-financial assets:
Liabilities no longer payable written back
Miscellaneous income

Finance cost

Mark-up on long term borrowings
Mark-up on short term borrowings
Bank charges

Taxation

Current
Prior year
Deferred

Relationship between the tax expense
and accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax calculated at the rate of 29%

Tax effect of:

- income chargeable under Final Tax Regime

- income chargeable under minimum tax regime
- tax impact on discontinuation of gratuity fund

- prior years

- impact on inadmissible & admissible expenses
- impact of deferred revenue

- impact due to change in rate

- others

Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Profit after tax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMTED

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
106,534 164,349
8,079 -
41,259 36,007
155,872 200,356
594,947 600,000
1,444,257 13,600
2,039,204 613,600
2,195,076 813,956
55,693 -
6,471,911 4,462,989
54,372 33,581
6,581,976 4,496,570
Restated
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
20,554,741 16,122,153
1,677,519 3,631,733
1,320,547 (4,995,530)
23,552,807 14,768,356

71,390,349

57,416,464

20,703,201 16,650,775
(66,331) (50,507)
955,214 2,622,373

1,877,536 s
1,677,519 3,631,733

(1,644,269) (8,205,140)
373,425 .
(58,251) .

(272,839) 109,122
23,545,206 14,758,356
47,837,542 42,656,060

7,452,900 7,452,900
6.42 5.72

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
Page 28 of 35
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28. Remuneration of Chief Executive, directors and executives

THE PAKISAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive,

Directors and other Executives of the Company are as follows:

Managerial remuneration

Contribution to provident and gratuity funds
Bonus
Meeting fee

Reimbursable expenses

Others

Total

Numbers

Note Chief Executive Non - Executive directors Executives
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Rupees
16,137,924 14,190,000 - - 38,503,452 32,154,000
968,280 1,554,282 - - 2,310,205 3,573,305
3,250,000 2,500,000 - - 8,241,517 7,623,000
- - 2,630,000 1,230,000 -
- 344,317 - - 1,820,642
28.1 6,033,320 2,685,899 - - 7,190,738 5,760,685
26,389,524 21,274,498 2,630,000 1,230,000 56,245,912 50,931,632
28.2 1 1 5 6 14 8

28.1 The Company also provides the Chief Executive with vehicle allowance and club membership facility clubbed in 'others'.

28.2 This includes compensation provided to Mr. Adnan Afaq up to December 2019, after which Mr. Shahzad Saleem was appointed as the Company's CE
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Transactions and balances with related parties

Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

100 % owned Subsidiary company

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited

On account of:

Expense paid on behalf of subsidiary company
Year end balances - unsecured

Payable to related party - unsecured

Associated company (20% owned)

Aequitas Information Services Limited
On account of:

Investment in associate during the year
On account of:

Amount given on account of loan

Expense paid on behalf of related party
Expenses paid by related party on behalf of Company

Mark-up on loan

(Receivable) / payable to related party - unsecured
Other related party

Aequitas (Private) Limited

On account of:

Expense paid on behalf of related party
Amount reimbursed by related party

Year end balances - unsecured

Receivable from related party

Post employment benefit plans / Other related parties

On account of:

Contributions to Provident Fund Trust
Contributions to Employees Gratuity Fund Trust

Year end payable balance

Gratuity fund
Provident fund
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
6,630,003 7,937,168
13,344,778 7,276,414
- 7,500,000
30,000,000 =
1,505,018 1,064,864
1,018,614 1,454,223
8,079
(105,124) 389,359
1,138,626 1,064,964
3,883,710 430,259
244,711 2,989,795
5,105,362 4,254,388
- 3,302,626
- 7,797,243
746,094 =
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Directors

Muhammad Adnan Afaq (10% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid
Remuneration

Meeting fee

Year end payable balance
Salary payable

Retirement benefit payable

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO
On account of:

Remuneration

Year end payable balance
Salary payable

Mumtaz Hussain Syed (27% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid
Meeting fee

Sardar Ali Watto (13% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid
Meeting Fee

Usman Haider (13% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid

Other Directors (0.000065% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid
Meeting fee

Share holders holding more than 20% equity:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid

Key Management Personnel (other than directors)

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, COO
On account of:

Remuneration
Year end payable balance
Salary payable

Page 31 of 35

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
3,726,450 3,726,450
14,943,900 21,274,498
120,000 -
. 2,500,000
2,035,085 -
11,445,624 -
1,782,604 -
10,061,400 10,061,400
460,000 270,000
5,030,700 5,030,700
340,000 -
5,030,705 5,030,705
24 24
1,710,000 960,000
13,415,220 13,415,220
10,770,312 18,585,832
- 3,000,000
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting
transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties,

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes In economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimize
the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where
applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

Carrying Values

Note 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Trade debts - unsecured 18 118,999,596 99,515,745
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 1,759,429 7,062,313
Advance income tax - net 230,662 1,571,175
Cash and bank balances 21 932,702 2,740,284

121,922,389 110,889,517

Quality of Financial Assets
Trade debts
Analysis of trade debts that are neither past due nor impaired and that are past due but not impaired is described in Note 16.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered
integral part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using a provision matrix:

0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2020
Expected credit loss rate 0.3% 7.9% 14.2% 8.1% 100.0% -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 86,947,522 29,639,755 4,105,549 1,624,340 2,301,332 124,618,498
default
Expected credit loss 262,517 2,341,541 581,940 131,572 2,301,332 5,618,902
0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days Qver 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2019
Expected credit loss rate 0.94% 4.93% 10.99% 32.52% 100.00% -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 83,012,053 11,309,478 7,111,623 300,792 1,375,206 103,109,152
default
Expected credit loss 780,313 557,657 781,567 97,818 1,375,206 3,592,461

As at 30 June 2020, trade debts of Rs. 5.6 million (2019: Rs. 3.6 million) were impaired and provided for.

Rating Rating Agency 2020 2019
Bank balances Short Term Long Term (Rupees) (Rupees)
Bank Al Habib A1+ AA+ PACRA 932,702 2,408,996
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A-1 A PACRA - 32,711
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA - 149,097
FINCA Microfinance Bank A-1 A PACRA - 104,149
932,702 2,694,953

Y
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company applies
prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines. The table
below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

Year ended Less than 3 Jto12
30 June 2020 On demand months months 1 to 5 years > § years Total

Amount in Rupees

Markup accrued 1,348,115 1,348,115 - - - 1,348,115
Trade and other payables 50,624,826 - 50,624,826 - - 50,624,826
Contract Liability 40,163,758 40,163,758 - - 40,163,758
92,136,699 41,511,873 50,624,826 - - 92,136,699
Year ended Less than 3 Jto12
30 June 2019 On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Amount In Rupees

Markup accrued 1,373,344 1,373,344 B - - 1,373,344
Trade and other payables 46,058,762 - 46,058,762 - - 46,058,762
Contract Liability 36,288,958 36,288,958 - - - 36,288,958

83,721,064 37,662,302 46,058,762 - - 83,721,064

Forelgn Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or a financial liability will fluctuate due to change in foreign exchange
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company's exposure to foreign
currency risk Is as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Bank balances - 149,097
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:
USD = PKR 166.9 164

The Company has assessed that hedging its foreign currency exposure will be more expensive than assuming the risk itself.
Sensitivity Analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the above exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Company's loss / profit before tax and the Company's equity.

Increase / decrease In Effect on profit before tax
Exchange rate (%) 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
+10 - 14,910
A0 - (14,910)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rate.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the fund obtained from parent company with
floating interest rates.

(Increase) / decrease Effect on profit before tax
In baslis points 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
+100 93,270 57,020
-100 (93,270) (57,020)
Yy -
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The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair value.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2020 2019
Dividend Dividend
payable Total payable Total
--=-Rupees - -« --==Rupees - - - -
Balance as at 01 July - - 18,632,250 18,632,250
Changes from financing activities
Dividend paid 37,264,500 37,264,500 (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
Total changes from financing cash flows 37,264,500 37,264,500 (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
Other changes
Dividend declared 37,264,500 37,264,500 18,632,250 18,632,250
Total liability related other changes 37,264,500 37,264,500 18,632,250 18,632,250
Closing as at 30 June - - - -
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 21 932,702 2,740,284
Short term borrowing - secured 12 (45,181,055) (36,285,101)

(44,248,353) _ (33,544,817)

Capital risk management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed,
which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also
monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:
()  to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year nor the Company
is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Provident fund related disclosures

The following information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

Un-audited Audited
2020 2019

Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund - Total assets 29,809,628 24,095,579
Cost of investments made 29,465,833 23,885,817
Percentage of investments made 98.85% 99.13%
Fair value of investments 29,465,833 23,885,817

a1\~
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The break-up of fair value of investments is:

2020 2019
Rupees % Rupees %
Deposit and saving accounts 9,465,833 32% 7,993,616 33%
Term deposit receipts 20,000,000 68% 15,892,201 67%
29,465,833 100% 23,885,817 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose,

Number of employees

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2020 2019
----- (No. of employees)-----
Average number of employees during the year 69 61
Number of employees as at 30 June 69 68
General
Date of authorization
These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

Events after reporting date

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 05 October 2020 has proposed final cash dividend of Rs,
3

per share amounting to Rs. 22,358,700. These appropriations will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

~ N\od» AGLLQ@{M , 4 -~

Chief Executive 2 “Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2020
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of The Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and (of) its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors Report for the year ended 30 June 2020, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
OV

nember firm of Ernst & Young Glabal Limite Page 15013
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures

e
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are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants. The audit report dated 25 November 2019
expressed an unmodified opinion.

The en

gagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is

Abdullah Fahad Masood.

E/u /)G’Vd M/\G’OLP/\

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

Lahore

: 06 October 2020
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ASSETS
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Authorized share capital Property and equipment
12,500,000 (2019: 12,500,000) Intangibles
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 125,000,000 125,000,000 Long term deposits
Investment in associate
Deferred taxation
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 6 74,529,000 74,529,000
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land 7 81,945,420 58,319,174
Accumulated profit 74,641,641 71,623,660
231,116,061 204,471,834
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES CURRENT ASSET
Long term finance - secured 8 12,705,843 - Trade debts - unsecured
Contract Asset
Loan to associated company- unsecured
DEFERRED LIABILITIES Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax-net
Deferred government grants 9 901,985 - Cash and bank balances
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10 37,497,658 38,947,348
Contract liability 11 40,288,758 36,288,958
Short term borrowing- secured 12 45,181,055 36,285,101
Accrued mark-up 1,348,115 1,373,344
124,315,586 112,894,751
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 369,039,475 317,366,585 TOTAL ASSETS

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Arahjad, Aalacr.

Chief Executive Page 1 of 36

Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

14 153,574,855 129,824,202
15 254,885 636,869
1,335,300 1,336,200
16 48,695,765 57,392,038
17 10,627,595 11,948,142
214,488,400 201,137,451
18 119,720,652 102,593,953

2,038,611 -

19 30,000,000 -
20 1,759,429 7,076,150
72,916 1,721,799
21 959,467 4,837,232
154,551,075 116,229,134
369.039.475 317,366,585

g%

Director




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers - net
Administrative and general expenses

Provision for expected credit loss on trade debts
Operating profit

Other income

Finance cost

Share of loss of associated company

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after tax

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statementst.)ﬁ

AhaMad. ddt.c:;

Chief Executive

Restated
(note 17)
Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
22 258,736,017 234,355,610
23 (176,466,175) (164,999,645)
18.1 (4,552,056) (3,089,162)
77,717,786 66,266,803
24 2,294,815 1,133,872
25 (6,585,030) (4,497,730)
16.1 (9,533,312) (6,749,524)
63,894,259 57,163,421
26 (24,448,817) (16,215,458)
39,445,442 40,937,963
27 5.29 5.49
P
_~~  Director



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Restated
(note 17)
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation 39,445,442 40,937,963
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account:
- Recognition of actuarial loss on defined benefit plan - (3,916,160)
- Related deferred tax - 1,135,686
- Share of other comprehensive income of associated company - net 837,039 -
- Gain on revaluation of freehold land 23,626,246 s
24,463,285 (2,780,474)
Total comprehensive income for the year 63,908,727 38,157,489

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statement%ﬂ/

Ahahjod. Aaleese e
Chief Executive / Director




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance as on 30 June 2018
Effect of initial application of IFRS 15, net of tax
Effect of initial application of IFRS 9, net of tax

Adjusted balance as at 1 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation - restated

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 at the
rate of Rs 2.50 per share,

Balance as on 30 June 2019 - restated
Balance as on 30 June 2019

Balance as on 01 July 2019 - restated

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners, recorded directly in equity
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share.

Balance as on 30 June 2020

Issued,

subscribed and

Capital reserve Revenue Reserve

Surplus on

paid up share revaluation of Accu':::i[:' ted Yol
capital freehold land P
Rupees
74,529,000 58,319,174 62,716,943 195,665,117
- - (9,090,880) (9,090,880)
- - (1,527,642) (1,627,642)
74,529,000 58,319,174 52,098,421 184,946,595
- * 40,937,963 40,937,963
5 - (2,780,474) (2,780,474)
- - 38,157,489 38,157,489
- - (18,632,250) (18,632,250)
= - (18,632,250) (18,632,250)
74,529,000 58,319,174 71,623,660 204,471,834
74,529,000 658,319,174 67,131,697 199,979,871
74,529,000 58,319,174 71,623,660 204,471,834
- - 39,445,442 39,445,442
- 23,626,246 837,039 24,463,285
- 23,626,246 40,282,481 63,908,727
- - (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
74,529,000 81,945,420 74,641,641 231,116,061

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. »
A
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 63,894,259 57,153,421
Adjustment of non cash items:
Depreciation on property and equipment 14.1 3,246,361 2,717,158
Amortization on intangible assets 15.1.1 381,984 652,912
Finance cost 25 6,585,030 4,497,730
Gratuity (income) / expense 24 (1,444,257) 3,881,083
Mark-up on saving accounts 24 (255,873) (371,421)
Provision for expected credit loss on trade debts 18.1 4,552,056 1,441,798
Trade debts written off 24 2,526,561 1,647,364
Exchange loss / (gain) 24 8,341 (148,851)
Liabilities no longer payable written back 24 (594,947) (600,000)
Share of loss of associated company 16.1 9,633,312 7,932,731
Gain on dilution of equity interest in associate during the year 16.1 - (2,183,207)

24,538,568 19,467,297

88,432,827 76,620,718
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in trade debts (24,213,657) 7,655,486
Increase in contract asset (2,038,611) =
Decrease / (increase) in advances, deposits and prepayments 5,316,721 (1,927,930)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 6,942,500 (9,619,762)
Increase in contract liability 3,999,800 22,356,821

(9,993,247) 18,464,615
Finance cost paid (6,831,389) (3,997,865)
Income tax paid (21,238,529) (29,314,692)
Contribution to gratuity fund (6,352,986) (3,302,626)
Net cash generated from operating activities 44,016,676 58,470,150
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment (3,370,768) (3,210,520)
Investment in associate - (7,500,000)
Interest received 255,873 371,421
Net cash used in investing activities (3,114,895) (10,339,099)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
Loan to associated company (30,000,000) -
Long term finance obtained 13,589,000 -
Net cash used in financing activity 31 (53,675,500) (37,264,500)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,773,719) 10,866,551
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (31,447,869) (42,463,271)
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents . 148,851
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 (44,221,588) (31,447,869)

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statementsi.W
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1 Legal status and operations

The PACRA Group ("the Group") comprises of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ("PACRA") ("the
Holding Company"), PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited ("PAPL") (100% owned) and Aequitas Information
Services Limited ("AISL") (20% owned). For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, PACRA
and its consolidated subsidiary & associate are referred to as the Group.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited is part of PACRA Group which consists of:

%age of holding
Helding Company

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
Subsidiary Company

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 100%

Associated Company
Aequitas Information Services Limited 20%

The Holding Company was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on 18 August 1994 and
converted into a public limited company on 30 April 2004. The business of the Company is to carry out risk
evaluation of companies and specific instruments. The evaluation is expressed in terms of assigned credit
rating to the entity or the instrument reflecting the capacity to honor its debt or other fixed term obligations.
The registered office of the Company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden
Town, Lahore.

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited - (the "Subsidiary Company")

Pacra Analytics (Private) Limited (the "Subsidiary Company") was incorporated as a private limited company
in Pakistan on 04 January 2010 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 which was superseded by the
Companies Act, 2017. The objectives of the Company are to carry on business as management & financial
consultants, risk managers, project manager, tax & trust consultants, planners, advisors, accountants, share
registrars, surveyors, assessors, supervisors, promoters and / or technical advisors of or for any person,
company, trust, banks and financial institutions.

Aequitas Information Services Limited - (the "Associated Company")

Aequitas Information Services Limited (the "Associated Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 25
March 2016 as a Public Limited Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed by Companies
Act. 2017). The Associated Company's registered office is located at 35-A-ll, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank,
Gulberg V, Lahore. The main objectives of the Associated Company are to carry out the business of a Credit
Information Company for collecting credit information as permissible by law relating to debtors of banks,
financial institutions, non-banking financial institutions, non-financial companies and other lenders or
authorities including retailers, insurance companies, utility providers and also to collect and maintain any
credit information, with respect to individuals, partnerships, corporations, institutions, trusts, estates,

cooperatives, associations, Government or Governmental subdivisions or agencies or any other entity. :
oo
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Holding Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Holding Company controls another entity. The Holding Company also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances
where the size of the Holding Company’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Company the power to govern the financial and operating policies, etc.

Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of Holding
Company ("PACRA") and its subsidiary & associate.

The Holding Company applies the acquisiton method to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Holding Company
recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
are prepared upto the same reporting date using consistent accounting policies.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Holding Company is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be
an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with IAS 39 either in consolidated statement of profit or loss
or as a change to consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair
value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. After initial recognition, is measured at carrying value
i.e. cost at the date of acquisition less any accumulated impairment.

The financial statements of subsidiaries have been consolidated on line by line basis. All significant inter-
company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognized in assets are
also eliminated,

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Holding Company ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Holding Company had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This mav mean that amotints nraviansly rernanized in
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Statement of compliance

These are consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of;

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the Group in which investment in
subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of acquisition method and investment in associate is accounted for
on the basis of equity interest method. Standalone financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries are prepared separately.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on

Standard or Interpretation or after)

IFRS 9, IAS 39 Interest rate Benchmark Reform — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

&IFRS 7

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 1 January 2020
— (Amendments)

IFRS 10 & 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 1 January 2020
Joint Venture — Amendments

IAS1&8 Definition of Material — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

IFRS 3 Definition of a business — (Amendments) 1 January 2020

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards and
conceptual framework have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on
Standard or Interpretation or after)

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS 7071 July 2009

e s
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

New accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments applicable to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
following new and amended standards and interpretations effective for annual period beginning on 1 July
2019, as listed below. The Company has not early-adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — (Amendments) 1 January 2019

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint 1 January 2019
operation — (Amendments)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation 1 January 2019

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on 1 January 2019
financial instruments classified as equity

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 1 January 2019

The adoption of above standards, interpretations and amendments applied for the first time in the year did
not have impact on financial statements of the Group.

Basis of preparation
Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
freehold land which is measured using revaluation model.

Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumption

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on the historical experience, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or
complexily or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as
foliows{i -
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Useful lives, residual values, pattern of economic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to depreciable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefits are
based on the analysis of the management of the Group. Further the Group reviews the value of the assets
for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the
carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the

Expected credit loss / loss allowances against trade debts, deposits and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

The Group reviews its trade receivables at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be
recorded in the statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required.
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes to the provisions.

Revaluation of freehold land

Revaluation of freehold land was carried out by independent professional valuer. Revalued amounts of non-
depreciable items are determined by reference to current market values.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in market value of the freehold land, being
revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a further
revaluation is required.

Taxation

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Group. Based on its judgment
and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision
is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of
the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet dater.m/
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Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, that is, the amount that the Group would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting
date or to transfer it to a third party.

Impairment

The management of the Group reviews carrying amounts of its non financial assets including cash
generating units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any
such indication.

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous year except as described in Note 2.2:

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Group expects to be entitled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction of
discounts. Specific revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

Fee income

Revenue from rating services is recognized at point in time when services are rendered to the customer,
which is when ratings are delivered to the customer. Revenue attributed to monitoring is recognized ratably
over the period in which monitoring is performed, generally one year.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues under the effective interest method.

Property and equipment

Items of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less subsequent impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction including expenditures on material, labor and
overheads directly relating to construction, erection and installation of property and equipment.

Land is recognized at revalued amount based on valuation by external independent valuer. A revaluation
surplus credited to other reserves (capital reserves) in shareholders’ equity and presented as separate line
item in statement of financial position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land was recognized, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected
with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-
progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available for use.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to expense during the period in which these are incurred.
3/
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Depreciation charged on all property and equipment except freehold land, is based on the straight line
method so as to write off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at rates mentioned in
note 14 after taking into account their residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month
in which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which an asset is disposed
off.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Intangible

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible asset and any identified
impairment loss. The estimated useful life and amortization method is reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Finite intangible assets are amortized using straight-line method at rates mentioned in note 15 to these
consolidated financial statements. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month
in which an asset is put to use and on disposal up to the month of disposal.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

The Group accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary
differences arising on differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and their corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year,
and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on net
basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Trade debts, deposits and other receivable

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and measured at
fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance.

Trade and other payable

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Contract Balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration for rendering of services if the Group performs by providing
services to customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group render services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract.

Related Party Transactions
All transactions involving related parties arising in normal course of business are conducted at arm's length
at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation

modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board
of Directors, it is in the interest of the Group to do so.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

5.13.1 Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade debts
and bank balance that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policy in Revenue from contracts
with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal
amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or hoth.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group's financial assets include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, other receivables
and bank balances.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

¢) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also
recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized,
modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized costs includes trade debts and other receivables.

c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The Group does not have any financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments).

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual

Eaails RSO i SR e, oy



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCl is recycled to
profit or loss.

The Group does not have debt instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected
credit losses. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The impact of ECL on trade
Aahte ic AicnlAacad in nata 10
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For bank balances, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected
credit losses. The Group reviews internal and external information available for each bank balance to
assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the outstanding contractual amount. The expected
credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss however, the impact of ECL on bank balances
is immaterial.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities - initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized
as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of

comprehensive income,

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements,
creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or maodification is

treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operated a defined contributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Group and employees at the rate of 6.25% of the basic salary to

the Provident Fund Trust. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is expensed as the related
service is provided.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when:
GAY/



5.16

5.17

5.18

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

i) there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group; or

ii) there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that
would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax
effect of changes in profit and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions shall be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as
income on systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When a grant related to non monetary asset is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the
pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration
received less altributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings
are stated at original cost less subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized
amounts (as reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss
account over the period of borrowings on an effective rate basis. The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is

included in the cost of related asset.
(A2
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Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
fully paid in cash 1,500,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 16,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares
5,952,900 5,952,900 59,529,000 59,529,000
7,452,900 7,452,900 74,529,000 74,529,000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an associated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2019: 2,683,042) ordinary shares
comprising 36% of the paid up share capital of the Holding Company.

Directors hold 4,769,858 (2019: 4,769,858) ordinary shares comprising 64% of total paid up share capital of the
Holding Company.

2020 2019
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land Rupees Rupees
Revaluation surplus as at 01 July 81,945,420 68,319,174

The revaluation of freehold land was carried out by an independent valuer, M/S Tristar International Consultant
(Private) Limited as at 16 March 2020. The revalued amount Is determined based on present market value of the
freehold land after considering location, size, frontage, general condition, financial involvement, present conditions
of market and general practice of declaring sale value of urban property in accordance with approved government
rates and overall economic condition of the Group.

Note 2020 2019
Long term finance - secured Rupees Rupees .
Bank AL Habib Limited 8.1 =

12,705,843

The Holding Company has obtained long term finance facility from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of
Pakistan refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the month of April
2020 to June 2020. This represents amount of term finance facility for paying salaries for the month of April 2020
and May 2020. The facility is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments, payable quarterly in arrears,
commencing after a grace period of 9 months and it carries markup at the rate of 3% per annum. This facility is
secured by way of first hypothecation charge over book debts of the Company for Rs. 40 million and furniture &
fixtures of the Company for Rs. 10 million.

Deferred government grants

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market interest
rate under SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries of Workers and Employees (as described
in Note 8),

Note 2020 2019

Movement during the year is as follows: Rupees Rupees
Balance at beginning of the year - #
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year 937,275
Amount recognized as income during the year (35,290) -
Balance at end of the year 901,985 -
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 34,499,612 23,866,832
Payable to Provident Fund 746,094 -
Payable to gratuity fund 10.1 . 7,797,243
Withholding tax payable 754,749 40,200
Sales tax payable - net 1,497,203 7,243,073

37,497,658 38,947,348

As approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting dated 12 March 2019, the
retirement benefit plan related to gratuity has been discontinued effective 30 June 2019. Accordingly, the actual
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Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Contract liahility
Advance from customers 11.1 11,150,749 7,995,373
Deferred revenue 11.2 29,138,009 28,293,585
11.3 40,288,758 36,288,958

This represents advance received from customers for future rating of entities.
This represents deferred revenue relating to monitoring services recognised over time.

Revenue recognized in the reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of
the period amounts to Rs. 36 million.

Note 2020 2019
Short term borrowing- secured Rupees Rupees
J§ Bank Limited 12.1 44,619,505 36,285,101
Bank AL Habib Limited 12.2 561,550 -
45,181,055 36,285,101
Add : Related accured mark-up 1,348,115 1,373,344
46,529,170 37,658,445
Less: Accrued mark-up shown as current liability (1,348,115) (1,373,344)
45,181,055 36,285,101

This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from JS Bank Limited of Rs. 90 million (2019:
Rs. 60 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 150 bps per annum (2019: 1 month
Kibor plus 150 bps per annum) payable quarterly in arrears. This is secured by way of equitable and legal
mortgage of notional value of Rs. 100,000 over a commercial plot measuring 2-Kanals, 12-Marla and 107-Sq.Ft.
situated at plot no. 34, Block-T, off Gurumangat Road, Gulberg-Il, Lahore owned by the Holding Company.

This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from Bank AL Habib Limited of Rs.15 million
(2019: Rs 10 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 bps per annum (2019: 3
month Kibor plus 150 bps per annum), payable quarterly. This is secured by way of first hypothecation charge of
Rs. 20 million and Rs. 10 million on book debts and furniture and fixtures of the Holding Company respectively.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

JS Bank Limited has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Holding Company in favor of Finance
Department of Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million (2019: Rs. 0.05 million).

Commitments

The amount of future payments under operating leases and the period in which these payments will become due
are as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Not later than one year 8,014,380 6,707,440
Later than one year but not later than five years - 9,198,432

o0
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14 Property and equipment

2020
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Additions / Cost / Revalued Net Book value
01 ._bﬂ »u.n.o 19 Revaluations Disposals amount o1 .__”..._w mh 019 EM.E. . Disposals A mnmwwo._c:o as at 30 June Rate
o during the year 30 June 2020 Y yoa 2020
“ememsmessscddcceccaae-RUPEES == mmmmmmaacccaaa e R {1 - T %
Owned
Freehold land 120,693,754 23,626,246 - 144,320,000 - - - 144,320,000 =
Fumiture and fixtures 16,037,537 608,468 - 16,646,005 14,907,772 484,435 - 15,372,207 1,273,798 10-3333
Office equipment and computers 15,400,337 2,762,300 - 18,162,637 10,571,986 1,874,426 - 12,446,412 5,716,225 10-25
Security and surveillance equipment 158,727 . - 158,727 158,727 - - 158,727 - 33.33
Vehicles 4,633,509 " - 4,633,509 1,461,177 907,500 - 2,368,677 2,264,832 20
._um_mnummm.a Nmmwmﬂo: - 183,920,878 27,099,662 wmmam_um‘ - womu&mmomw 153, mqh_mmm
2019
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
= : Cost / Revalued Net Book value
As at Additions during . As at For ; As at 30 June
Disposals amount Disposals as at 30 June Rate
01 July 2018 the year 30 June 2019 01 July 2018 the year 2019 2019
....................... Rupees - - -----cemmme B {1 = %
Owned
Freehold land 120,693,754 o - 120,693,754 - - - - 120,693,754 -
Fumiture and fixtures 15,655,017 382,520 - 16,037,537 14,467,569 440,203 - 14,907,772 1,129,765 10-33.33
Office equipment and computers 12,572,337 2,828,000 - 15,400,337 8,206,031 1,365,955 - 10,571,986 4,828,351 10-25
Security and surveillance equipment 158,727 - - 158,727 158,727 - - 158,727 - 33.33
Vehicles 4,633,509 - - 4,633,509 550,177 911,000 - 1,461,177 3,172,332 20
153,713,344 3,210,520 - 156,923,864 24,382,504 2717158 - 27,099,662 129,824,202
Note 2020 2018
Rupees Rupees
14.1 Depreciation charge is allocated as follows:
Administrative and general expenses 23 3,246,361 2,717,158

14.2  As 2t 30 June 2020, the carmying value of freehold land would have been Rs. 62.37 million (2019: Rs. 62.37 million), had there been no revaluation.
14.3 The cost of the assets as at 30 June 2020 includes fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 31.78 million (2019: Rs. 21.85 million) still in use of the Company.

14.4 The forced sale value of freehold land measuring 2-Kanals, 12-Marla and 107-Sq.Ft. is Rs. 122,672,000 on the basis of revaluation conducted as at 16 March 2020. It is situated at plot no. 34, Block-T, off Gurumangat Road,

Gulberg-li, Lahore. J
nrr/J,
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Note 2020 2019
15 Intangibles Rupees Rupees
Intangible assets 15.1 254,885 636,869
15.1 Intangible assets
2020
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Additions As at As at As at value as at
01 July during the 30 June 01 July For 30 June 30 June
2019 year 2020 2019 the year 2020 2020 E
cecesccse===--RUpPEES -===~-ccmcaann ceemmmmmmmce--c=e===RUpPEES ---ccccamcnnc e
Windows and MS office software 1,250,644 - 1,250,644 1,133,145 114,336 1,247,481 3,163
Rating software 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 -
Accounting software 932,930 - 932,930 413,560 267,648 681,208 251,722
Web development software 170,505 - 170,505 170,505 - 170,505 -
Database software 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
8,267,039 - 8,267,039 7,630,170 381,984 8,012,154 254,885
2019
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Additions As at As at As at value as at
01 July during the 30 June 01 July For 30 June 30 June
2018 year 2019 2018 the year 2018 2019 _
.............. Rupees -----=-------- cemmemacicaseeea-a--RUPEES - - s mm i m o
Windows and MS office software 1,250,644 - 1,250,644 741,489 391,656 1,133,145 117,499
Rating software 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 1,912,960 - 1,912,960 -
Accounting software 932,930 - 932,930 152,304 261,256 : 413,560 519,370
Web development software 170,505 - 170,505 170,505 - 170,505 -
Database software 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
8.267,039 - 8,267,039 6,977,258 652,912 7,630,170 636,869
Note 2020 2019
15.1.1 Amortization charge has been allocated as follows: Rupees Rupees
23 381,984 422,684

Administrative and general expenses

42.1.2 The cost of the assets as at 30 June 2020 includes fully amortized assets amounting to Rs. 7.12 million (2019: Rs. 6.99 million) still in use of the Company.

(500 4
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Investment in associate 16.1 48,695,765 57,392,038
Cost of investment
Aequitas Information Services Limited
7,000,000 (2019: 7,000,000) fully paid shares of Rs. 10 each 70,000,000 70,000,000
Share of loss
As at 01 July (12,607,962) (6,858,438)
Share of loss for the year (9,533,312) (7,932,731)
Share of other comprehensive income 837,039 =
Gain on dilution of equity interest in associate during the year _ 2,183,207
As at 30 June (21,304,235) (12,607,962)
Net investment as at 30 June 48,695,765 57,392,038

The Holding Company owns 7 million (2019: 7 million) fully paid shares at the rate of Rs. 10 each resulting in total
20% equity investment in Aequitas Information Services Limited and accordingly has classified this interest as
investment in associate. The registered office of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at 35-A-ll Aziz
Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulberg V Lahore, Pakistan. The investment has been made in accordance with the

requirements under Companies Act 2017,

Summarized financial information in respect of Aequitas Information Services Limited, an associated company, on
the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out below:

Non current assets

Current assets

Non current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Less: Share deposit money

Percentage ownership interest

Group's share of net assets representing carrying amount of
interest in associated company

Revenue

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income

Share of total comprehensive loss for the year from continuing operations

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
316,312,686 233,271,258

51,479,508 69,491,341
(19,229,709) (5,707,026)
(81,383,662) (10,095,381)
267,178,823 286,960,192

23,700,000 -
243,478,823 286,960,192

20.00% 20.00%

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

48,695,765 57,392,038

29,075,072 -

(47,666,559) (34,229,693)
4,185,190 -
(8,696,273) (7,932,731)

Y/
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Deferred taxation

2020
: (Charge) / Credit to other
Opening % : : i
credit to profit comprehensive Closing balance
balance :
or loss income
--------------------- RUPEES = » == mm e e
Deductible temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances 439,714 (182,251) - 257,463
Provision for expected credit losses 1,042,088 578,180 - 1,620,268
Payable to gratuity fund 2,261,200 (1,877,536) - 383,664
Contract liability 8,205,140 161,060 - 8,366,200
11,948,142 (1,320,547) - 10,627,595
2019 - Restated
. Effect of Impact of . Credit to other
Opening correctionof  adoption of naw (Bharge) fcrodit comprehensive  Closing balance
balance to profit or loss !
error standards income
------------------------------------ (Rupges) - - - - wmem e e e
Deductible temporary difference
Accelerated {ax depreciation /
amortization allowances 522,020 - (82,308) - 439,714
Provision for expected credit losses 623,967 418,121 - 1,042,088
Payable to gratuity fund 957,762 - - 167,752 1,135,586 2,261,200
Contract liability (correction of error - note 3,713,177 4,491,963 - - - 8,205,140
17.1)
5,192,959 4,491,963 623,967 503,567 1,135,686 11,948,142

In prior year the Company had recognized an advance tax amounting fo Rs. 3.7 million instead of recording the same
as deferred tax asset on initial adoption of IFRS 15 and similarly had not recorded deffered tax asset on closing
contract liability as at 30 June 2019. The above has been identified as a fundamental error and adjusted
retrospectively as per the requirements of 1AS-8 'Changes in accounting policies, estimates and fundamental errors',
The effect of correction of the error on financial statements is summarized below. Since the error only relates to prior
year, a third statement of financial position has not been presented.

Effect on 2019

(Rupees)
Increase in deferred tax asset 33 AT
Increase in deferred tax asset 4,491,963
Decrease advance income tax - net (3,713,177)
Decrease in taxation (4,491,963)
Increase in profit after tax 4,491,963

The effect of restatement on statement of financial position is summarized below:

As reported at 01 Restated as at

July 2018 Restatement | "4 il 2018
------------------------ [ RAT]o=T-1-) IR R —
Deferred tax asset 1,479,782 37 ¥3 17T 5,192,959
G}
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As reported at 30 Restatement Restated as at
June 2019 30 June 2019
------- (Rupees)
Deferred tax asset 3,743,002 8,205,140 11,948,142
Advance tax 5,434,976 (3,713,177) 1,721,799

The effect of restatement on statement of profit or loss is summarized below:

As reported at 30 Restatsiment Restated as at
June 2019 30 June 2019
(Rupees) s=resssmmmsueas
Taxation 20,707,421 (4,491,963) 16,215,458
Profit after tax 36,446,000 4,491,963 40,937,963

The effect of restatement on statement of changes in equity is summarized below:

As reported at 30 Restatoment Restated as at
June 2019 30 June 2019
(Rupees)
Profit after taxation - restated 36,446,000 4,491,963 40,937,963

Since error relates to comparative year ended 2019, accordingly third balance sheet has not been presented.

Note 2020 2019

Trade debts Rupees Rupees
Trade debts - unsecured, considered good 125,339,554 106,187,360
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) 18.1 (5,618,902) (3,593,407)

__ 119,720,652 _ 102,593,953
The movement in provision for expected credit

losses is as follows:
Balance as at 30 June 3,593,407 -
Effect of initial application of IFRS 9 - 2,151,609
Charge for the year 4,552,056 3,089,162
Trade debts written off directly (2,526,561) (1,647,364)
2,025,495 1,441,798

Balance as at 30 June 5,618,902 3,593,407

Loan to associated company

Loan to Aequitas Information Services Limited 19.1 30,000,000 -
Add : Related accrued mark-up 8,079 -

30,034,290 -
Less: Accrued mark-up shown as other receivable 20.1 (8,079) S

30,000,000

This represents loan given to Aequitas Information Services Limited (AISL) for the purpose of bridging AISL's cash
shortfall till subscription of a right issue. The loan is repayable after one year along with the markup of one month
KIBOR plus 150 bps or at the rate paid by Aequitas Information Services Limited to its other sponsor shareholder,

whichever is higher. Any delay would yield a service charge of 1% per month.
QN s
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20.1.1 Other receivables include following unsecured amounts against accrued interest:

20.1.2 The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was:

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Advances, deposits, prepayments and

other receivables

Advances - unsecured, considered good

- to employees

- to suppliers

Prepayments

Other receivables

Other receivables include following unsecured amounts due from related parties:

Aequitas (Private) Limited (related party)

Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate)

Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate)

Aequitas (Private) Limited (related party)

Aequitas Information Services Limited (associate company)

20.1.3 Age analysis of advance from associated companies, past due but not impaired is as follows:

0 to 6 months
6 to 12 months
Above 12 months

Note 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
- 340,538
3,919 490,000
1,405,675 1,375,662
201 349,835 4,869,950
1,759,429 7,076,150
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
244,711 2,989,795
97,045 -
341,756 2,989,795
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
8,079 c
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
2,989,795 2,989,795
105,124 -
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
349,835 1,329,410
- 1,650,590
349,835 2,980,000

T
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22.2
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Note 2020 2019
Cash and bank balances Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand - 45,331
Cash at bank
Local currency
- Current accounts 232 2,421,593
- Deposits and saving accounts 21.1 959,235 2,221,211
959,467 4,642,804
Foreign currency
- Current accounts - 149,097
959,467 4,837,232
This carries mark up at the rate of 6.5% to 11.5% (2019: 4.50% to 10.25%) per annum.
Note 2020 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 280,775,286 247,287,570
- foreign 1,420,000 1,308,099
282,195,286 248,595,669
Income from non-rating business 9,292,292 18,352,724
Less: Provincial Sales tax 32,751,561 32,592,783
221 258,736,017 234,355,610

During the year, there were no clients who along with their associates contributed ten percent (10%) or more of

the total revenue of the Group.

Disaggregation of Fees income

In the following table fees income from contracts with customers is disaggregated primarily by types of services

and timing of revenue recognition.

Type of services - Local fees income

Entity rating
Instrument rating
Fund rating
Training services

Type of services - Foreign fees income

Entity rating
Training services

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognized at a point in time
Revenue recognized overtime

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
174,943,734 146,741,695

52,929,172 51,400,207

20,559,319 18,183,385

4,480,000 10,190,000
252,912,225 226,515,187
1,420,000 1,308,099
4,403,792 6,532,324
5,823,792 7,840,423
258,736,017 234,355,610
210,576,191 191,731,163

48,159,826 42,624,447

258,736,017 234,355,610

ey~
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Note 2020 2019
23 Administrative and general expenses Rupees Rupees

Salaries and other benefits 23.1 136,542,254 121,098,749
External rating committee members and consultancy fee 7,238,000 5,375,000
Rent, rates and taxes 9,950,841 11,118,176
Postage and telephone 927,047 1,045,562
Utilities 3,241,943 3,336,293
Legal and professional charges 2,510,939 3,164,990
Director's meeting expenses 2,630,000 1,230,000
Travelling and entertainment 3,337,108 6,144,427
Printing, stationery and periodicals 913,445 1,179,363
Fee and subscription 507,410 1,136,339
Auditor's remuneration 23.2 648,750 677,135
Repairs and maintenance 1,497,729 1,113,631
Software usage and maintenance 1,386,120 733,038
Insurance 29,842 23,142
Depreciation on property and equipment 14.1 3,246,361 2,717,168
Amortization on intangible assets 16.1.1 381,984 652,912
Others 1,476,402 4,263,730

176,466,175 164,999,645

23.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 5.32 million (2019: Rs. 4.45 million) and Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 3.88
million) in respect of contribution to provident fund and charge on account of gratuity fund respectively.

Note 2020 2019
23.2  Auditors’ remuneration Rupees Rupees
Annual audit 475,000 481,500
Audit of consolidated accounts 150,000 100,000
Out of pocket expenses 23,750 95,635
648,750 677,135
24, Other income
Income from financial assets:
Mark-up based income from conventional banks:
Mark-up on saving accounts 255,873 371,421
Mark-up on loan given to associate 8,079 -
Exchange (loss) / gain (8,341) 148,851
255,611 520,272
Income from non-financial assets:
Liabilities no longer payable written back 594,947 600,000
Miscellaneous income 1,444,257 13,600
2,039,204 613,600

2,294,815 1,133,872
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Finance cost
Mark-up on borrowings 6,527,604 4,462,989
Bank charges 57,426 34,741
6,585,030 4,497,730
Restated
(note 17)
2020 2019
Taxation Rupees Rupees
For the year
Current tax 21,075,236 17,219,353
Prior year 2,053,034 3,991,635
Deferred tax 1,320,547 (4,995,530)
24,448,817 16,215,458
Relationship between the tax expense
and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 73,453,782 57,153,421
Tax calculated at the rate of 29% 21,179,363 16,574,492
Tax effect of:
- income chargeable under Final Tax Regime (106,177) (381,250)
- prior years 2,053,034 278,458
- tax impact on discontinuation of gratuity fund 1,877,536 -
- Income chargeable under minimum tax regime 1,046,994 2,709,757
- Permanent difference - 1,667,362
- impact on inadmissible & admissible expenses (1,644,269) -
- impact of deferred revenue 373,425 -
- Tax impact due to change in rate (58,250) -
- Others (272,839) (4,633,361)
24,448,817 16,215,458
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Profit after tax 39,445,442 40,937,963
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 7,452,900 7,452,900
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 5.29 5.49

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Holding Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group.
s
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28.1

Remuneration of Chief Executive, directors and executives

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration,

Directors and other Executives of the holding company are as follows:

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

including certain benefits to the Chief Executive,

Chief Executive Non - Executive directors Executives
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 16,137,924 14,190,000 - - 40,773,761 32,154,000
Contribution to provident and gratuity funds 968,280 1,554,282 - - 2,439,896 3,573,305
Bonus 3,250,000 2,500,000 - - 8,241,517 7,623,000
Meeting fee - - 2,630,000 1,230,000 - -
Reimbursable expenses - 344,317 - - - 1,820,642
Others 28.1 6,033,320 2,685,899 - - 7,642,634 5,760,685
Total 26,389,524 21,274,498 2,630,000 1,230,000 59,097,808 50,931,632
Numbers 28.2 1 1 5 6 14 8

The Holding Company also provides the Chief Executive with vehicle allowance, and club membership facility clubbed in ‘others'.

28.2 This includes compensation provided to Mr. Adnan Afaq up to December 2019, after which Mr. Shahzad Saleem was appointed as the Company's CEOQ.
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Transactions and balances with related parties

Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees
Associated company (20% owned)
Aequitas Information Services Limited
On account of:
Investment in associate during the year - 7,500,000
On account of:
Amount given on account of loan 30,000,000 =
Expense paid on behalf of related party 1,505,018 1,064,864
Expenses paid by related party on behalf of Company 1,018,614 1,454,223
Mark-up on loan 8,079 -
(Receivable) / payable to related party - unsecured (105,124) 389,359
Other related party
Aequitas (Private) Limited
On account of:
Expense paid on behalf of related party 1,138,626 1,064,964
Amount reimbursed by related party 3,883,710 430,259
Year end balances - unsecured
Receivable from related party 244,711 2,989,795
Post employment benefit plans / Other related parties
On account of:
Contributions to Provident Fund Trust 5,105,362 4,254,388
Contributions to Employees Gratuity Fund Trust - 3,302,626
Year end payable balance
Gratuity fund - 7,797,243
Provident fund 746,094 -
Directors
Muhammad Adnan Afaq (10% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend paid 3,726,450 3,726,450
Remuneration 14,684,834 21,274,498
Meeting fee 120,000 -
Year end payable balance
Salary payable 2,500,000

Retirement benefit payable 2,035,085 -
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO
On account of:
Remuneration 11,445,624 -

Year end payable balance

Salary payable

1,728,604

Mumtaz Hussalin Syed (27% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 10,061,400 10,061,400
Meeting fee 460,000 270,000

Sardar Ali Watto (13% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid : 5,030,700 5,030,700
Meeting Fee 340,000 -

Usman Haider (13% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 5,030,705 5,030,705

Other Directors (0.000065% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 24 24
Meeting fee 1,760,000 960,000

Share holders holding more than 20% equity:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid 13,415,220 13,415,220
Key Management Personnel (other than directors

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, COO

On account of:

Remuneration 10,770,312 18,585,832
Year end payable balance

Salary payable - 3,000,000

Mr. Tariq Magbool, CEO of the Subsidiary Company
On account of:

Remuneration 2,851,896 2,663,505
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30, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

30.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting
transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimize
the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where
applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date Is:

Carrying Values

Note 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Trade debts - unsecured 18 119,720,652 102,593,953
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 1,759,429 7,076,150
Advance income tax - net 72,916 1,721,799
Cash and bank balances 21 959,467 4,837,232

122,512 464 116,229,134
Quality of Financlal Assets

30.1.1 Trade debts
Analysis of trade debts that are neither past due nor impaired and that are past due but not impaired is described in Note 16.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses, The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered
integral part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment.

Set out below is the Information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using a provision matrix;

0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2020
Expected credit loss rate 0.3% 7.9% 14.2% 8.1% 100.0% -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 86,947,522 29,639,755 4,105,549 1,624,340 2,301,332 124,618,498
default
Expected credit loss 262,517 2,341,541 581,940 131,572 2,301,332 5,618,902
0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2019
Expected credit loss rate 0.94% 4.93% 10.99% 32.52% 100.00% -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at 83,012,053 11,309,478 7,111,623 300,792 1,375,206 103,109,152
default
Expected credit loss 780,313 557,557 781,567 97,818 1,375,206 3,592,461

As at 30 June 2020, trade debts of Rs. 5.6 million (2019: Rs. 3.6 million) were impaired and provided for.

Rating Rating Agency 2020 2019
30.1.2 Bank balances Short Term Long Term (Rupees) (Rupees)

Bank Al Habib A-1+ AA+ PACRA 959,235 4,060,007
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 232 445,937
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A-1 A PACRA - 32,711
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA - 149,097
FINCA Microfinance Bank A-1 A PACRA - 104,149

959,467 4,791,901

b
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30.2  Liquidity Rlsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company applies
prudent risk management policies by maintalning sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines. The table
below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

Year ended Less than 3 3to12
30 June 2020 On demand months months 1to 5 years > 5§ years Total
Amount in Rupees

Markup accrued 1,348,115 1,348,115 - - - 1,348,115
Trade and other payables 37,497,658 - 37,497,658 - - 37,497,658
Contract Liability 40,288,758 40,288,758 - - 40,288,758

79,134,531 41,636,873 37,497,658 - - 79,134,531

Year ended Less than 3 3to12
30 June 2019 On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Amount In Rupees

Markup accrued 1,373,344 1,373,344 - - - 1,373,344
Trade and other payables 38,947,348 - 38,947,348 - - 38,947,348
Contract Liability 36,288,958 36,288,958 - - - 36,288,958

76,609,650 37,662,302 38,947,348 - - 76,609,650

30.3  Forelgn Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or a financial liability will fluctuate due to change in foreign exchange
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company's exposure to foreign
currency risk is as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Bank balances - 149,097
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporling dates:
USD = PKR 164.5 121.4

The Company has assessed that hedging its foreign currency exposure will be more expensive than assuming the risk itself.
Sensitivity Analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the above exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Company's loss / profit before tax and the Company's equity.

Increase / decrease In Effect on profit before tax
Exchange rate (%) 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
+10 - 14,910
-10 - (14,910)

30.4 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rate.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the fund obtained from parent company with
floating interest rates,

(Increase) / decrease Effect on profit before tax
in basis points 2020 2019
(Rupees) (Rupees)
+100 95,924 222,121
100 (95,924) (222,121)
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30.5 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

31.

32,

33.

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their
fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2020 2019
Dividend Total Dividend Total
payable payable
---=-Rupees ===~ ---=-Rupees - - - -
Balance as at 01 July - - 18,632,250 18,632,250
Changes from financing activities
Dividend paid 37,264,500 37,264,500 (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
Total changes from financing cash 37,264,500 37,264,500 (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
flows
Other changes
Dividend declared 37,264,500 37,264,500 18,632,250 18,632,250
Total liability related other changes 37,264,500 37,264,500 18,632,250 18,632,250
Closing as at 30 June - - - -
Note 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 20 959,467 4,837,232
Short term borrowing- secured 11 (45,181,055) (36,285,101)
(44,221,588) (31,447,869)

Capital risk management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return
on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The
Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are;

(i) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year nor the
Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
N
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Provident fund related disclosures

The following information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

Un-audited Audited
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund - Total assets 29,809,628 24,095,579
Cost of investments made 29,465,833 23,885,817
Percentage of investments made 98.85% 99.13%
Fair value of investments 29,465,833 23,885,817
The break-up of fair value of investments is;
2020 2019
Rupees % Rupees %
Deposit and saving accounts 9,465,833 32% 7,993,616 33%
Term deposit receipts 20,000,000 68% 15,892,201 67%
29,465,833 100% 23,885,817 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Number of employees

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2020 2019
----- (No. of employees)-----
Average number of employees during the year 69 61
Number of employees as at 30 June 69 68
General

Date of authorization

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Events after reporting date

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on 05 October 2020 has proposed final
cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share amounting to Rs. 22,358,700. These appropriations will be approved in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 do not include the effect of these

appropriations which will be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June

2021,
cc,\\e/
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